ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 21, 2001
11: 22 a.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Fred Dyson, Chair
Representative Peggy WIlson, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Gary Stevens
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Sharon Ci ssna

Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 173

"An Act relating to establishing a screening, tracking, and
intervention program related to the hearing ability of newborns
and infants; providing an exenption to licensure as an
audi ol ogi st for <certain persons performng hearing screening
tests; relating to insurance coverage for newborn and infant
hearing screening; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 173(HES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO 85
"An Act relating to conduct directed at a school enployee as an
aggravating factor for crimnal sentencing purposes.”

- MOVED HB 85 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BILL NO 71
"An Act relating to the education of children with disabilities
and of gifted children; relating to the Governor's Council on
Disabilities and Speci al Educati on; maki ng conform ng
amendnents; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 71(HES) OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 112

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- April 21, 2001



"An Act relating to information and services available to
pregnant wonen and ot her persons; and ensuring inforned consent
before an abortion may be perforned, except in cases of nedical
enmer gency. "

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 173

SHORT TI TLE: SCREENI NG NEWBORNS FOR HEARI NG ABI LI TY
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) JOULE

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action
03/12/01 0542 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
03/12/01 0542 (H HES, FIN
03/13/01 0579 (H) COSPONSOR( S) : SCALZI
03/ 30/ 01 0794 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  KERTTULA
04/ 17/ 01 1021 (H) COSPONSOR( S) :  MORGAN
04/ 17/ 01 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 17/ 01 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( HES)
04/ 18/ 01 1052 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  STEVENS
04/ 19/ 01 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
04/ 19/ 01 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
04/ 21/ 01 (H HES AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TCL 106
BILL: HB 85

SHORT TI TLE: AGGRAVATI NG FACTORS | N SENTENCI NG
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) COGHI LL

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 22/ 01 0143 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 22/ 01 0143 (H EDU, HES, JUD

02/ 14/ 01 0328 (H) COSPONSOR( S) : DYSON

04/ 11/ 01 (H EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 11/01 (H Moved Qut of Commttee --
Locati on Change --
M NUTE( EDU)

04/ 12/ 01 0986 (H EDU RPT 4DP 1NR

04/ 12/ 01 0987 (H) DP: PORTER, GREEN, GUESS,
BUNDE;

04/ 12/ 01 0987 (H) NR: JOULE

04/ 12/ 01 0987 (H) FN1: ZERQ( COR)

04/ 12/ 01 0987 (H FN2: ZERQ( LAW

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- April 21, 2001



04/ 17/ 01
04/ 21/ 01

BILL: HB 71

1021

COSPONSOR( S):  GUESS
HES AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: EDUC. OF DI SABLED OR G FTED CHI LDREN
RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
01/ 17/01

01/17/01
01/17/01
01/17/01
02/ 07/ 01
02/ 07/ 01
02/ 07/ 01
03/ 14/ 01
03/ 14/ 01
03/ 14/ 01
04/ 04/ 01

04/ 04/ 01
04/ 11/01
04/ 11/ 01

04/ 11/01
04/ 17/ 01

04/ 17/ 01
04/ 17/ 01

04/ 17/ 01
04/ 21/ 01

Jr n- Page
0112

0112

0112
0112

1014
1014

1014
1014

BILL: HB 112

SHORT TI TLE: ABORTI ON:
SPONSOR( S) :

Jrn-Dat e
02/ 05/ 01

02/ 05/ 01
02/ 05/ 01
03/ 08/ 01
03/ 08/ 01
03/ 08/ 01
03/ 09/ 01

NN N NN NN AN AN AN AN NN ~

e X

ITIZ 5 I T T E 2

NN N

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
EDU, HES, FIN
FN 1: ZEROQ( EED)
GOVERNOR' S TRANSM TTAL LETTER
EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( EDU)
EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( EDU)
EDU AT 8: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE
519
Schedul ed But Not Heard
EDU AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
Moved CSHB 71(EDU) Qut of
Comm ttee -- Location Change
M NUTE( EDU)
EDU RPT CS(EDU) NT 2DP 1DNP
INR 1AM
DP. JOULE, GUESS; DNP:
PORTER;
NR: BUNDE; AM GREEN
FN1: ZERQ( EED)
HES AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

| NFORMED CONSENT; | NFORMVATI ON

REPRESENTATI VE( S) COGHI LL

Jr n- Page
0241

0241
0241

0529

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

~—~

I3I23T 2

Action
READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
HES, JUD, FIN
REFERRED TO HES
HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( HES)
COSPONSOR( S) :  KOHRI NG

April 21, 2001



04/ 17/ 01 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 17/ 01 (H) <Bi || Postponed to 4/19/01>
04/ 19/ 01 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 19/ 01 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard

04/ 21/ 01 (H HES AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TCL 106

W TNESS REG STER

Rl CHARD BLOCK

Christian Science Commttee Publication of Al aska
360 West Benson

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 173.

CHRI STI NE HESS, St aff

to Representative Reggie Joule

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Buil ding, Room 405

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the sponsor of HB
173.

VERNON MARSHALL, Executive Director
Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on- Al aska
114 2nd Street

Juneau, Al aska 99811

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 85.

BRUCE JOHNSQN, Deputy Conm ssioner of Education
O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment
801 West 10th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 71.

GREG MALONEY, Director

Speci al Education

Department of Education and Early Devel opnent
801 West 10th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 71.

S| D HElI DERSDORF, Al askans for Life

PO Box 658

Juneau, Al aska 99811

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 112.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- April 21, 2001



COLLEEN MURPHY, M D., Qostetrician-Gynecol ogi st
3260 Providence Drive

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 112.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-48, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 11:22 a.m
Menbers present at the call to order were Representatives Dyson
W son, Kohring, GCissna, and Joule. Representatives Coghill and
Stevens joined the neeting as it was in progress.

HB 173- SCREENI NG NEVWBORNS FOR HEARI NG ABI LI TY

CHAI R DYSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 173, "An Act relating to establishing a
screening, tracking, and intervention program related to the
hearing ability of newborns and infants; providing an exenption
to licensure as an audiologist for certain persons performng
hearing screening tests; relating to insurance coverage for
newborn and infant hearing screening; and providing for an
effective date."

Number 0230

RICHARD BLOCK, Christian Science Conmittee Publication of
Al aska, testified via teleconference on HB 173. He said he is
speaki ng on behalf of those people who, as a matter of practice
and religious conmtnent, rely exclusively on prayer for
heal i ng. To those people, the notion that they or their
children would be subjected to a physical examis sonething that
they would find not consistent with their faith. He stated that
t hroughout the history of Alaska, the Alaska State Legislature
has recognized this legitimate concern and has provided
accommodat i ons. He said [the Christian Science Conmittee
Publication of Alaska] would ask, if it is the intent of the
| egislature to adopt this public policy of generally requiring
hearing screening, t hat they continue the practice of
recogni zing the special concerns of people who rely on prayer
for healing, and exenpt themfromthis requirenent.

MR. BLOCK pointed out that there is a federal |aw that
encourages this, but which also contains a provision by Congress

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- April 21, 2001



that recognizes the concerns of those who rely on prayer for
heal i ng. He stated that the |anguage he proposes essentially
parallels that in the congressional Act.

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Block if his religion rejects screening,
since nothing in the bill has to do with healing.

MR. BLOCK responded that [Christian Scientists] fundanentally do
object [to the screening], because they start from the prem se
of man's perfection and have been successful in asserting that.
They do not choose to start their new children's lives by
| ooking for things that are w ong.

CHAIR DYSON stated that he wunderstands that part of the
notivation [behind HB 173] is that detecting hearing loss wth

newborn children is quite difficult to do. He added that
children whose hearing loss is not corrected, either through
intervention or prayer, will have profound learning disabilities

and perhaps socialization ones.
Nunber 0587

CHRISTINE HESS, Staff to Representative Reggie Joule, Alaska
State Legislature, explained that page 5, subsection (f),
provi des an exenption from the testing on the grounds that the
procedures conflict with the religious tenets and practices of
t he parent.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA st at ed:

This sort of brings to mnd for nme [that] ... over
time we've begun to be nore sensitive about the words
we use. W say hearing "loss,” and in a way this may
be a hearing "difference." And what we're really
tal king about is how we teach. "m sure that [M.
Bl ock' s] nmenbership is not opposed to education, and
really this is education

Number 0717

[ There was a notion to report HB 173 out of conmittee, but it
was Wi thdrawn in order to take up an anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE nade a notion to adopt Anendnent 1, which
read [original punctuation and capitalization provided]:

Page 5, subsection (g), lines 14-18

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- April 21, 2001



DELETE
There bei ng no objection, Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved to report HB 173, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 173(HES) noved
from the House Health, Education and Social Services Standing
Commi ttee.

HB 85- AGGRAVATI NG FACTORS | N SENTENCI NG

CHAI R DYSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 85, "An Act relating to conduct directed at a
school enployee as an aggravating factor for crimnal sentencing
pur poses. "

Nunmber 0880

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL stated, as sponsor of HB 85, that this
woul d anmend the state statutes by allowng a judge to increase
penalties for assaults on school enployees. He said this was
brought to himby NEA (National Education Association).

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked where else in statute it says a
judge [can increase penalties for assaults].

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded that this falls wunder the
aggravator section, and is 1 of 30 itenms that are described as
aggravating factors.

Nunmber 0985

VERNON  MARSHALL, Executive Director, Nat i onal Educat i on
Associ ati on- Al aska (NEA- Al aska), canme forth and stated that NEA-
Al aska appreciates that the legislature is taking steps to nake
schools safe. He said [NEA-Al aska] thinks this is a step toward
establishing a standard, recognizing that it is a serious issue
when anyone assaults a school enployee while that enployee is
performng his or her duties. He added that the bill gives the
court an opportunity to consider the aggravator when adjusting
t he sentence.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL read to the commttee [AS] 12.55.155(b):

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- April 21, 2001



(b) Sentence increnments and decrenents wunder this
section shall be based on the totality of the
aggravating and mtigating factors set out in (c) and
(d) of this section.

He then read subsection (30 of HB 85:
(30) the defendant knowingly directed the conduct
constituting the offense at a school enployee during
or because of the exercise of official duties.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL explained that the primary task is to
allow this to be an aggravator if there is an egregi ous attack.

Nunber 1198

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA st at ed:

As a state, in the benchmark of social heal t h
indicators, we don't fare too well in sone categories.
And we're third ... in incarceration. ... Although I'm

totally in favor of raising the status of teachers as
a group that really desperately [needs] to be
respected as those [who] are guiding the course of our

children's future, at the very same tine | hope that
in all of these things ... we don't I|limt the
possibilities for alternative sent enci ng, for

alternative ways of grappling with changi ng our status
of being third in incarceration.

CAROL COVEAU, Superintendent, Anchorage School D strict (ASD),
stated that [ASD] is very supportive of this because it is
allowing for the discretion of a judge.

Nunber 1296

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE noved to report HB 85 out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, HB 85 noved from the House Health,
Educati on and Social Services Standing Committee.

HB 71-EDUC. OF DI SABLED OR G FTED CHI LDREN

CHAI R DYSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 71, "An Act relating to the education of children
with disabilities and of gifted children; relating to the
Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education; making

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- April 21, 2001



conform ng anendnents; and providing for an effective date.”
[ Before the committee was CSHB 71( EDU). ]

Nunber 1373

CHAI R DYSON stated that his recollection is that there have been
speci al -education provisions for kids wth disabilities and,
concurrently, for gifted and talented (GI) children that have
been intermngled in the code. He stated that the federal
governnment does not recognize GI as a part of the special
provi sions made for kids with disabilities, and has objected to
their being mxed in [Alaska's] code or in the funding. The
federal governnent has directed [the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent] to disentangle them so that the [federal
governnment] is clear that the noney provided for children with
disabilities is not conmngled with the gifted and talented
program He asked if he was right [in saying this].

BRUCE JOHNSON, Deputy Commi ssioner of Education, Ofice of the
Comm ssioner, Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent
(EED), stated that he was correct. He clarified that the
federal governnent was never concerned about the comm ngling of
the statutes or regulation, but was very concerned wth [the
EED] using noney earmarked for children with disabilities for
children with the exceptionality of giftedness. Therefore, [the
EED] stopped doing that. He stated that |ast year there was a
di scussi on about whether the federal governnent would withhold
noney if this is not corrected. [The EED] did get a signal from
[the federal governnent] that no noney would be wthheld, and
there is no reading that the IDEA (Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act) 97 dollars that conme to [Alaska] are in jeopardy
for next year. He stated that in Mrch, the State Board [of
Educati on] adopted regulations that are in conpliance wth | DEA
97, and [the EED] is trying to show substantial conpliance
wher ever possi bl e.

MR. JOHNSON added that the bill has been inproved this year on
both sides of the equation: the part of the bill that serves
children with disabilities as well as the part that serves
children with the exceptionality of giftedness. He stated that
[the EED] did this through a deliberate process wth
constituents, starting with those who are nobst concerned about
children with disabilities. There was a two-day neeting
facilitated by an outside expert, and there were agreenents over
the disagreenents that had arisen during testinony |ast year.
On the GI side, [constituents] feel very strongly that they want
to be included under the unbrella of "exceptional children.”

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- April 21, 2001



Nunmber 1585

MR, JOHNSON explained that when |[the EED] developed its

|l egislation, it was split into two sections: one dealing
specifically with children with disabilities, the other with the
exceptionality of giftedness. He stated that in the bill |ast

year there was children-with-disability |anguage that was pretty
much as it is today. On the GT side, since the state has not
been receiving any noney to nonitor or provide technical
services for GI students, [the EED] elected to require that
districts serve children with that exceptionality, but for all
procedures and rules around that to be determned district by
district. He stated that this was not well received; therefore,
[the EED] has now taken a different approach, which has a nodest
fiscal note, to provide a half-time person for technical
oversi ght. The districts would then be nonitored on how well
they were doing wth GI students.

MR. JOHNSON stated that [the EED] did not include transportation
as a related service for this popul ation because [the EED] has
heard a |ot about the escalating cost of transportation, and
thought the |egislature should take proactive neasures if it
wants to provide transportation for this popul ation. He added
that there previously was not a clause on nediation; however,
there is with [this bill].

CHAIR DYSON asked if, by and large, the gifted-and-talented
parent advocacy groups are now confortable that this is in
separate sections of the bill and no | onger comm ngl ed.

MR.  JOHNSON responded that he wouldn't say that they are
confortable, but they have recognized that there are sone
advantages to doing this. They ultimately feel that, given the
way [the bill] was crafted, it was a reasonable approach. He
clarified that [GIl is still wunder the broad wunbrella of
exceptional children, but was a separate section wthin that
statute.

CHAIR DYSON asked what the vote was in the House Special
Comm ttee on Education (HEDU).

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked if M. Johnson, prior to answering
Chair Dyson's question, could speak to the amendnents that were
made in HEDU.

Number 1805

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- April 21, 2001



MR. JOHNSON responded that the three amendnents on the GI side

involved the least restrictive environment. He stated that
[HEDU] voted to delete "least restrictive environnment" from the
bill, as was recommended by [the EED]

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE stated that since there was an objection to
the anendnment there was a vote, which carried the anendnent 4-2.

CHAIR DYSON stated that [in HEDU there were two "do passes,"”
one "do not pass,"” one "amend,"” and one "no recommendation” [for
CSHB 71(EDU)].

Number 1938

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL stated that one of the +things he
struggles with in this bill is that the |anguage, except wth
what was anended, pretty nuch mrrors the |DEA |anguage. He
asked if one could construe that there is a civil right that is
bei ng protected. He also stated that with IDEA, inclusion is

being forced, whereas with the GI, exclusion is being forced
He remarked that he finds this contradictory and would |i ke sone
di scussion on it.

GREG NMALONEY, Di rector, Speci al Educati on, Department  of
Education and Early Devel opnent, responded that in ternms of how
GI and IDEA 97 interact, there is no federal requirenent for the
gi fted. Therefore, it was decided that both gifted [students]
and kids with disabilities would be served under "exceptional
children" on the state level. The current statute, he said, is
for the education of exceptional children. He stated that in
maki ng that decision to clarify which special education and
gifted requirenents are state nandates, the federal governnent
is nmost concerned with how [the EED] clearly outlines what are
federal requirenents when servicing kids with disabilities, and
that federal funds are not used to support gifted education.

MR. MALONEY stated that because "exceptional children" was used
for both gifted and special education, "least restrictive
environnent” was put in. Under |IDEA 97, least restrictive
environment nmeans that kids with disabilities are included in
their regular classroom with their sane-age peers to the degree
appropriate in order to provide an appropriate education. That
| anguage was also put in for the gifted. He said there was a
concern that if that |anguage were in there for the gifted, then
that would be taken to nmean that there could not be "pullout”
prograns or separate prograns for GI. He remarked that [the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- April 21, 2001



EED] understood that as neaning it would be up to each IEP
(I'ndividual Education Plan) team to make that determ nation.
However, there was strong feedback from the GI' community about
the least restrictive environnment. Since it is a state mandate,
there was nothing that was federally required to be maintained

for "least restrictive environment” for gifted education. He
noted that this could never be done for the children-wth-
disabilities piece. The idea is not inclusion but [for GTI

students to be] involved in the regular classroomto the maxi num
degree appropri ate.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL remarked that this is why he thinks this
| egi slature should take this up as two separate issues. He
stated that he is going to suggest that the question be divided,
since one is a federal nmandate and the other is a state option.

Number 2077

MVR. MALONEY clarified that the |anguage chosen for the
regulations also clarifies the gifted requirenents from the

federally nmandated special-education requirenents. He added
that this is also how it is represented in the current bill.
There are two conponents: t he speci al -educati on conponent and
GT.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked if this was why the change from
"exceptional <children" to "children wth disabilities" took
pl ace.

MR. MALONEY answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked where in the bill the division
occurs.

MR. MALONEY stated that it occurs on page 13, line 19 [in CSHB
71(EDU)].

Nunmber 2158
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA st at ed:

| personally think that although this is not a
federally mandated section of how we're providing
services to our children, at the very sanme tinme |'ve
known |lots of Mensa folks - people with extraordinary
mental ability - and know that nost of them [didn't]
attain what they could have attained. ... It was

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- April 21, 2001



because of the way that we didn't provide services in
schools. ... | would hope [that] if we're going attain
what we <can in this state, that we strive for
excellence all the way through so that we can really
do what we need to do in this state - and that's rise
above and really conpete out there. ... W're not
going to be able to do [that] unless we serve all of
our children.

MR.  MALONEY responded that there is a 30-year history in

[Aiaska] of providing gifted educational services. He stated
that there is also a very strong feeling in the gifted comunity
about the inportance of those services. He said he thinks the

difficulty for [the EED] has been that it has had the obligation
to oversee those prograns but has not had specific funding
enabling it to do that.

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE stated that regardless of what direction
[the committee] is going, he thinks it needs to be stated that

there is another bill noving through the legislature - the
charter schools bill - whereby potentially there could be a
school within a school or a charter school strictly for gifted
and talented students. He added that he also fears if [the

commttee] does not nobve this along, the GI part could get
buri ed.

Number 2267

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked, if these issues were separated and
gifted and talented were taken out, whether districts could
arrange for a GI [program.

VR. MALONEY responded that, in theory, districts could
voluntarily choose to provide gifted services. However, there
would be two concerns if this were left to the discretion of
districts: whether the districts would choose to do so, and the
consi stency of services. He stated that there has been a clear
nmessage throughout the history of providing gifted service that
sonme oversight from the state is appropriate, because then it
allows for those services to be provided and for there to be
sonme consistency, external to the district, in providing those
servi ces.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL remarked that the answer, then, is yes,
[the districts] could. He remarked that this |anguage is so
close to what is installed on a federal level for civil rights
that he is concerned it would create a problem in the civil

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- April 21, 2001



rights area. He asked M. WMiloney if he anticipates any
di scussi on on that.

MR. MALONEY replied that in the 30-year history there has been
nore confusion in ternms of how gifted services are applied,
because there has been sone overlap of services. When the
| anguage was together wunder "exceptional children,” there were
times when it was not clear to districts and/or parents what
applied to gifted and what applied to special education - it
took a fine reading of the regulations to get that. He
explained that in separating this, he thinks it clarifies what
the special -education and the gifted regulations are that need
to be followed. He said that there are some procedural
safeguards that apply to both; however, there are nore
protections under the federal law in relation to due process

He added that there has been very little litigation based on
civil rights issues.

TAPE 01-48, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded that wthout regard to the
litigation issue, he thinks that starting with due process
hearings and setting up frameworks of that type allows [the
issue of civil rights] to be in that discussion.

Number 2360

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether there already is a due
process in place for all children.

MR. MALONEY answered that there is a local admnistrative
conpl ai nt procedure through the school boards.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked if gifted children, then, already
have [a due process procedure] in place, as do all other
student s.

MR. MALONEY responded that they already have the due process
pr ocedur es. He clarified that this is not a new piece for
gi fted students.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked what is being added or taken away
that is not already avail able.

MR. MALONEY responded that in ternms of GI, the mmjor proposed

change was to renove transportation reinbursenent for gifted
ki ds. However, that was returned to the bill in HEDU. He

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- April 21, 2001



explained that this bill clarifies that some of the things that
are federally mandated do not apply to gifted Kkids. He stated
that at tinmes this has been msinterpreted to nmean that what is
appropriate for kids with disabilities is appropriate for Kkids
who are gifted. The strategy was to try to separate the two in
order to clear up the confusion and to nake sure that federa
funds were not being used inappropriately for gifted kids.

Nunber 2279

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON stated that her concern is that every
child should have the sane opportunity in learning. She said it
IS federal ly mandat ed to separate t he chil dren W th
disabilities; however, she feels that the [other children]
shoul d have the sane rights. She added that she has a problem
Wi th giving sone children nore rights than others.

MR. MALONEY responded that he thinks nenbers of the gifted
community would say that there are also kids who have high
abilities and have needs that are different from those of Kkids
within the range of what nmay be considered traditional or
nor mal . These are the kids who neet certain gifted criteria
who may have high cognitive scores, and who may have exceptiona
talents in sone areas that the regular curriculum is not
addr essi ng. The concern that cones up, he stated, is that if
this doesn't happen, then -nmuch |ike what happens with children
with disabilities - children won't be challenged, and they may
experience a high dropout rate. They will get frustrated, and
they may not do well in school, and.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON asked if [students are already being
chal | enged] .

MR. MALONEY replied that in speaking for the gifted comunity,
he thinks that - just as for kids with disabilities - the
regular curriculum nmay not neet their needs. Therefore, it
woul d require specific special services for the kids who are at
a higher level in terns of cognitive ability.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON stated that she agrees wth what M.
Mal oney is saying, but there already are classes that do that.
She said she is concerned with putting nore denmands on the
school s. She asked what other states are doing in these sane
si tuations.

MR. MALONEY responded that he doesn't have specific data on
prograns and how they relate in each state; however, this is a

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- April 21, 2001



topic that nost states have to deal with. He said Al aska is not
alone in struggling with how to provide appropriate services for
the entire range of kids. He added that nost districts do have
accel erated prograns; however, in ternms of the constant feedback
from the gifted program these are kids who require
categorically different services in order to denonstrate
appropriate achi evenent.

Nunber 2131

CHAI R DYSON stated that regardless of what [the committee does],
each district still gets 20 percent nore for the GI, |earning
di sabl ed, and vocational prograns. Therefore, there is no

change in funding.

MR. MALONEY stated that Chair Dyson was correct. He noted that
bilingual education is the one other program under the block
grant. He added that special education has the nost specific
requirenents; therefore, that funding has the nobst specific
uses.

Nunmber 2089

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA asked if she was correct is stating that
each district gets a share for special education, but that the
districts thenselves determne how the noney is spent. She
stated that friends of hers who are teaching in the Bush are
extrenely concerned because even though their district received
the noney, it was being spent in other ways. She reiterated
that people she has known who have exceptional abilities have
not achi eved what they could have achi eved.

MR. MALONEY responded that when the state provides the 20
percent block grant, which is based on total enrollnent of
students, there are no specific anobunts or percentages that have
to be spent on GI. He clarified that nothing addresses funding
[in the bill].

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE stated that under the block grant it's not
only rural schools that may have a problemw th how the noney is
spent . He asked if it is fair to say that in the nore urban
areas the noney heavily goes to one or two of the [block grant]
categories, such as special education, bilingual education in
the rural schools, or vocational education.

Nunmber 1896

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- April 21, 2001



MR. MALONEY replied that the nessage he has gotten from
superintendents and special education directors is that that is
the case. He said one reason is that special education has the
nost legalistic and specified requirenents. The chal |l enge,
then, is if a student has an IEP for a disability, it has to be
inplenented. If it is not [inplenented], parent, have the right
to challenge that. He noted that there is a simlar right for
the gifted, but in practice there has not been the sane |evel of
scrutiny provided through parents or others on the gifted
program as there has been federally and statewide in terns of
the special education requirenents. Kids who have disabilities
have expensive-educational prograns; therefore, nore funds tend
to go toward those students.

CHAI R DYSON stated that Representative Coghill has an amendnent
in the formof a commttee substitute that would take gifted and
talented out of [the current bill]. He said it is his sense

that the rest of the debate should just be on that. He asked if
it is fair to say that [the EED] has changed the regulations to
separate GI, and is now asking [the l|legislature] to change the
statutes to fit the regul ations.

MR. MALONEY answered yes. He clarified that even though the
di scussion focuses on GI, there are sonme specific pieces rel ated
to special education that are also in this bill

CHAIR DYSON remarked that he didn't nmean to downgrade the
i nportance of what [the EED] has done. He asked, if [the
commttee] does not pass this bill, whether [the EED] w |l have
regul ations that are out of conformty with the | aw.

MR. MALONEY responded that the regulations that were adopted are
in conformty with the current |aw.

CHAIR DYSON stated that [the conmmttee] wouldn't have to do
anyt hi ng, then.

MR. MALONEY clarified that if [the commttee] did nothing, the
federal funding for this year would not be in jeopardy. The
regul ations address the changes that [the EED] is wanting to
make; however, they do not take away the need to change the
stat ute.

CHAIR DYSON asked whether the federal government is not

satisfied with its being changed in regulation, and is requiring
that it be changed in | aw.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- April 21, 2001



MR.  MALONEY answered vyes, that [the federal governnment] is
requiring [the EED] to nove toward that. He added that the
federal governnent has not been conpletely clear in its nessage
to [the EED].

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Ml oney [what year the noney would be in
j eopar dy] .

MR. MALONEY replied that it is the noney that would arrive on
July 1, 2001

CHAI R DYSON asked, "If we did nothing now and did this 12 nonths
fromnow, we could still save your bacon?"

MR. MALONEY stated that that is his understanding.

Nunber 1720

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL nade a notion to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 71, version 22-GH1010\F, Ford,
4/ 20/ 01, as a work draft.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL explained that the gifted and talented
section is taken out of [the proposed CS]

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated that the way the original bill is
witten, it provides unfunded mandates at the local level to the
school s. She said she thinks this needs to be discussed nore

and that she agrees with Representative Coghill

CHAI R DYSON stated that this certainly is a nandate and limts

| ocal decisions; however, it can be argued that it 1is not
unfunded because there is 20 percent nore noney for every
district to cover the four categories. He added that if a

district does not have children considered to be GI or bilingual
students, [the district] would have the sane pot of noney that
could be put toward kids wth disabilities or vocationa
progr ans.

MR. MALONEY stated that he agrees wth Chair Dyson. He
clarified that the unfunded part is nore at the state |level for
the oversight of gifted prograns.

Nunmber 1565

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- April 21, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE JOULE asked, if this were to be separate, whether
the issue of transportation would renmai n unfunded.

MR. MALONEY stated that transportation is not part of the block
grant; therefore, if the gifted and talented section is taken
out, the transportation reinbursenment woul d al so be renoved.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA asked if passing the proposed CS or the
original bill would elimnate the ability to have transportation
for the gifted.

MR. MALONEY responded that the version of the bill that came out
of the House Speci al Committee on Education put back
transportation for GI. If gifted and talented is not part of
the districts' nmandate, then there would be no reinbursenment for
gifted kids because there wouldn't be a gifted program

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA stated that she wunderstands that [wth

this bill there is] the lack of a federal mandate, that the
transportation issue is needed, and that the oversight is
needed. She asked how many positions there are that cover

speci al educati on.

MR. MALONEY stated that currently there are three program
managers, in addition to hinmself, who provide direct oversight
for special education in the state. He clarified that this
woul d [offer] an additional half-tine position.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA remarked that her concern is that every
child has special needs and every child needs to be taught
differently. She stated that a half-tinme position doesn't seem
i ke very much.

Nunber 1372

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked, if a gifted and talented child is
in a school with other kids and the parents want him or her to
go to a different school, which is charter school, whether his
or her transportation would be paid for under this bill. She
al so asked, if there were another child whose parents wanted him
or her to go to a different school, but he or she wasn't GI,
whet her that child s transportation wouldn't be paid for.

MR. MALONEY responded that, for exanple, in Anchorage there is a
gifted program whereby kids from other sites are brought to a
central | ocation. He added that it is not necessarily parents'
choice. There would be an identification process through which

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- April 21, 2001



kids would be determned eligible, and then transportation would
be set up as part of the kids' educational program He
clarified that if a child is not in a gifted program his or her
transportation would not paid for.

REPRESENTATIVE ClI SSNA asked if this would also apply to a
speci al education child who did not have an | EP, but who wanted
to go to a different school.

MR. MALONEY answered that she was correct: that child's
rei mbur senent woul d not be provided for through the departnent.

Nunber 1160

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Coghill, Stevens,
Kohring, WIson, and Dyson voted for adopting the proposed CS as
a work draft. Representatives Cissna and Joule voted against
it. Therefore, proposed CSHB 71 was before the commttee by a

vote of 5-2.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if everything for children wth
disabilities is the same, in the proposed CS, as it was in the
original bill.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded that it is primarily the sane.

CHAI R DYSON renmarked that a profound change has been adopted; he
said he feels he owes it to M. Maloney to allow himto speak to
it.

MR. MALONEY responded that his experience with the gifted
comunity is that this is a group of people who feel
passi onately about the requirenment that children have for these
services, and that they wll have a strong reaction to this
[ change] . Their concern will be, he said, that the state has
not shown the |evel of support that they believe is needed for
their students. He added that this is a group of parents who
are well organized, and who will neke clear their concern wth
this particular |egislative nove.

Nunmber 1064
CHAI R DYSON stated his position:
We're talking about what is a public responsibility.

Certainly, for ne, when considering this debate, I
have to go back to our foundational docunents and say,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- April 21, 2001



"You know what constitutional authority and federal
and state [authority] we have for taking the public's
dollars to spend them on groups of populations.”™ And
certainly, in ny view, there is a hierarchy of those
things. Kids with disabilities have a far greater, in
nmy view, claim upon the taxpayer's dollars to help
them deal with the disabilities.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS stated that he appreciates the proposed
CS, but there is an inplied plan to nove ahead with dealing with
GI [students] in the future. He asked if this is Chair Dyson's
i ntention.

CHAI R DYSON pledged to this commttee that anything that cones
forward will receive a fair hearing. He added that he agrees
with Representative Cissna that exceptional kids should not be
left out of the public education process, and need to be
provided with all the education opportunities specially tailored
to their particular needs that are possible.

Number 0891

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA stated that it is a constitutiona
requi renent for students to be provided with the education that
they need. She said she thinks it is a defensible argunment that
it becones a handicap when gifted students [are not addressed].

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE remarked that he does not have a problem
supporting the bill as anmended; however, he is very disappointed
that it has been separated out. He stated that, |ike specia

education, gifted and talented crosses all socioeconomc |ines.

He stated that these aren't certain classes of kids; therefore,

the parents of gifted and talented of kids and the parents of
speci al - education kids are probably equal taxpayers.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON st at ed:
This is not an easy decision, but ... if we as

| egislators were fully funding schools the way they
should be funded, there would be extra noney to do a

lot of extra things. ... That's one of ny big
concerns; it's another mandate that we would be
putting on. And I'm not saying that it's not needed
and it's not inportant - it is; it's very inportant.

And those kids that are gifted and tal ented have every
right to learn up to their ability, if the sky's the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- April 21, 2001



limt. But, wunfortunately, we're not funding the
school s adequately at this tine.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL remarked that this nove is in no way
meant to disparage children in special-needs education.
However, [in response to] the issue that [Representative Joul e]
raised that it doesn't have soci oeconom ¢ boundaries, he said it

still stratifies an educational community, and he is always
cautious about doing that. He added that this is fashioned
after the IDEA, which is a civil rights issue, and he does not
think it is wise to mrror that |anguage. Finally, he said he

thinks I EPs are good for all students.

[A roll call vote for noving the bill was taken; however, a
notion to nove the bill had never been stated.]
Nunber 0454

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to report CS for HB 71, version 22-
GH1010\ F, Ford, 4/20/01 out of commttee wth individual
recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal note(s).

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Coghill, Stevens,
Kohring, Joule, WIson, and Dyson voted in favor of noving the
bill. Representative Ci ssna voted against it. Therefore, CSHB

71(HES) noved from the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmttee by a vote of 6-1.

HB 112- ABORTI ON: | NFORVED CONSENT; | NFORVATI ON

CHAI R DYSON announced that the |ast order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 112, "An Act relating to information and services
available to pregnant wonmen and other persons; and ensuring
i nfornmed consent before an abortion nay be perforned, except in
cases of nedical energency.”

Number 0218

SI D HEI DERSDORF, Al askans for Life, came forth and stated that
[ Alaskans for Life] supports HB 112 and recognizes that this
does not restrict or limt abortion in any way. He said there
is the objection of those opposed to this proposed |egislation
of, "Wiy single out abortion for special requirenments?” He
remar ked that one of the ways to answer that is to ask, "Wy is

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- April 21, 2001



abortion the only invasive nedical procedure for which people
are not adequately infornmed?" He stated:

It is well known that abortion counseling is a sham
The generic consent fornms do not address the issue of
the child in the wonb. Many of them do not address
specific pr obl ens associated wth the abortion
procedure. W are not talking about a tonsillectony
or sone sinple, Ilittle, 1innocent procedure; we're
tal king about a procedure which takes the life of a
child and, consequently can years later lead to pain,
regret, depression, [and] qguilt. The nmain problem
associated with that would be young girls who are not
properly informed and they discover after the fact
what it was that they really did. ... This is what
|l eads to an awful |ot of the post-abortion syndrone
that is seen in our country today.

It really is a sad commentary that we even have to
di scuss whether or not we should provide adequate
information - conplete information - for a wonman
contenplating an abortion. And | think that it's an
indication of just how far askew we've gone in our
society in the efforts to protect abortion in the eyes
of many people. You will hear clains that wonen are
al ready adequately inforned. If that's the case, then
there should be no objection to this |egislation.
However, anyone who's talked to wonen who've had
abortions very quickly [discovers] that informed
consent is not at all a practice in abortion.

TAPE 01-49, SIDE A
SI D HElI DERSDORF conti nued, stating:

) [This legislation] is for those who are not
adequately inforned. If there are sone that are
adequately infornmed, that's good. But I will bet you
that when people <claim that they're adequately
informed, the one central issue of abortion [that]
will be ignored, or is ignored, ... has to do with the
baby. And the baby is the reason that abortion is the
issue it is. The baby is the reason that wonen suffer
after the fact, in terns of the psychol ogical inpact.
| think it is absolutely a necessity for the woman to
be told about the gestational age and the devel opnent

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- April 21, 2001



of the baby in order for anyone to claimthat [she] is
adequat el y i nformed.

Nunmber 0099

SID HElI DERSDORF read responses from a past director of four
abortion clinics in Texas, who had been asked what type of
counseling was offered at the clinics:

In the clinics | was involved in, we didn't do any
real counseling. We answered the questions the wonen
asked and tried not to rock the boat. W did not
di scuss any alternatives to abortion unless the wonen
forced us to. Each woman asks two questions: Is it a
baby? Qur response: No, it is a product of
conception, blood clot, or glob of tissue. The second
guesti on: WII it hurt? [ Qur response]: No, vyou
will feel a slight cranping sensation. Most  wonen
have had the cranps and |ived through them so wonen
think the procedure nust not be too painful. The
counselor does try to determne the reason the wonman
wants the abortion, not so nmuch to help as to use the
fear to reinforce the abortion decision.

SI D HEI DERSDORF stated that it is alnmost as if people who are

opposed to this legislation wll believe the whole abortion
edifice will collapse if a wonman changes her m nd when she gets
the adequate information. He remarked that the present
definition in the legislation of "infornmed consent” tal ks about

a voluntary and knowi ng decision to undergo a specific procedure
or treatnment, based on the followng information such as the
description of the proposed treatnent or pr ocedur e, or
reasonably foreseeable conplications. He remarked that it seens
to him that no one can claim to be infornmed if this does not
include the gestational age and the stage of devel opnent. He
said he thinks that should be added to this definition of
i nformed consent, because that is the crux of the problem

SI D HElI DERSDORF summari zed by stating that when it cones to the
cost, he doesn't think the Departnment of Health & Soci al
Servi ces should have to spend a lot of noney on developing a
docunent .

Number 0363

COLLEEN MURPHY, MD., Obstetrician-Gynecologist, testified via
t el econf erence. She stated that counter to the testinony

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- April 21, 2001



provided by M. Heidersdorf, inforned consent does occur. She
said she has been working with the Al aska State Medica
Association on a nunber of legislative bills and there is
concern around the identification of a single surgical procedure
requiring such elaborate detail. She noted that she 1is
currently reviewing her nedical nmalpractice providers, which
clearly ask about the issue of term nation of pregnancy and the
provision of infornmed consent. She added that her current
estimates range from $30,000 to $50,000 a year to provide
obstetrician-gynecol ogi st services in Al aska. The nedica
mal practice situation in the U S and the Medical Legal Fund
currently treat nedical providers very well. She stated that
she does not think it is necessary for the conmttee to continue
its efforts to inprove infornmed consent.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the Alaska [State] Medical Association has
any standard procedures that delineate the information a surgeon
or a physician is supposed to give to a patient.

DR. MJRPHY responded that that is basically determned by [the
doctor's] specialty organization. The Anerican College of
Qobstetrician- Gynecol ogi st does have information on inforned
consent that doctors are advised to follow Likew se, she said,
the Medi cal I nsurance Exchange in California also has
i nformation on informed consent.

Number 0604

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said she would Ilike to know what 1is
required and what is said in the consent.

DR. MJURPHY stated that providers in every specialty are patient-
orientated, and that is why [nbst] take on this profession. She
added that in providing infornmed consent for this particular
procedure, each patient is asked if she has considered the
mul ti pl e options about continuing the pregnancy.

[HB 112 was hel d over.]
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 1:09 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- April 21, 2001



